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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-RF+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2014
FHIT
HK$'000
B WA Interest income 6 838,496 902,366
MEZH Interest expense 7 (248,168) (251,411)
E RS WA Net interest income 590,328 650,955
BEHHAR 2220 Net premiums earned 8 378,613 434,096
E A Other income 9 142,826 89,345
ZEFWA Operating income 1,111,767 1,174,396
HRE%,(74) 28 Net claims written back/(incurred) 8 7,583 (10,144)
HeSH 2 Net commission expenses 8 (83,368) (110,809)
ZELH Operating expenses 10 (266,648) (255,627)
RITRERT IR E 5= T Operating profit before impairment 769,334 797,816
WRORER %, (K %) Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances 14 242 (906)
RR®E AR A Profit before taxation 769,576 796,910
FiIm Taxation 15(a) (44,424) (50,937)
REE R Profit for the year 725,152 745,973
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HECR-AFt-A=t—-HLEE

for the year ended 31 December 2015

N5 A Profit for the year 725,152 745,973
Hitemis : Other comprehensive income:
HEWREFP»ERERRMN Items that are or may be reclassified
mA : subsequently to profit or loss:
AT SIS Available-for-sale securities:
— REY(TR) Mz 55 — net unrealised (losses)/gains 30 (111,566) 178,161
— HENAFEZIIHEA — fair value changes transferred to
Wk income statement on disposal 30 (129,989) (63,023)
— A — amortisation 30 - 13
— FHIm — tax effect 30 39,927 (19,595)
E R A Cash flow hedges:
— RAWERA AT EE — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 30 3,242 2,852
— FIIR — tax effect 30 (535) (471)
45 2 R AR E R Y Release of translation reserve on disposal
I 2 Al AT 34 Bl Y of a subsidiary classified as assets
LR AER held for sale 30 - (13,104)
RNEFHMETE (SHR), WS- Other comprehensive (loss)/income
BRI for the year, net of tax (198,921) 84,833
AEFEELEKE LM Total comprehensive income
for the year 526,231 830,806
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=E-HAF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2015

2014
T
HK$'000
B ASSETS
NekERRE Cash and short-term funds 17 21,007,367 18,421,490
BRI B RS 5k Interest and remittance receivables 18 326,778 350,851
TTESRMIEA Derivative financial instruments 19 473,403 556,962
AR S Loan portfolio, net 20 11,502,312 15,571,649
WEARIER Investment securities:
—AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 6,638,367 5,734,162
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 10,274,001 9,168,795
R -~ e REM A Prepayments, deposits and other assets 23 87,239 20,224
Bk g Fixed assets 24 26,630 35,109
BIRE R~ Reinsurance assets 27 128,653 144,179
BiEEE Total assets 50,464,750 50,003,421
R LIABILITIES
R FILE Interest payable 25 170,853 144,044
BRI~ RIS FF & Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hfth 51 5= and other liabilities 26 4,795,423 4,799,578
PTESRBMTEA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,821,927 1,575,968
L AR (5 Current income tax liabilities 15(b) 129,153 133,301
16 JE A I A7 5 Deferred income tax liabilities 15(b) 37,093 76,298
1RBE AR Insurance liabilities 27 978,845 1,112,089
BAITERSIES Debt securities issued 28 33,463,211 33,270,129
TR BE Total liabilities 41,396,505 41,111,407
& EQUITY
N FFB AR SRR Capital and reserves attributable to
MfEg the equity holders:
[N Share capital 29 2,000,000 2,000,000
R 5 A Retained profits 5,251,052 5,070,815
N B& %% contingency reserve 30 1,632,660 1,437,745
NEERER Fair value reserve 30 184,533 386,161
T & Hedging reserve 30 - (2,707)
N B 8 Total equity 9,068,245 8,892,014
5 R 2% B Total liabilities and equity 50,464,750 50,003,421
BERE T T AFWNA_-_T+HBH#ERKRI  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April
FiJ47 © 2016.
RiE R Norman T. L. Chan =LA Raymond L. C. Li

B EFMITEE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #77ZE F 3 2 & Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-RF+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2015

BARN &
Attributable to equity holders
RIEHIR
BAENE
e RE A Hiffa# Non-
Share Retained Other  controlling B8
capital profits reserves interests Total
THL THL TAL FAL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-Z-MmE-A-RA4H Balance as at 1 January 2014 2,000,000 6,048,760 1,512,448 12,972 9,574,180
REE R Profit for the year - 745973 - - 745,973
Efh e EE - Other comprehensive income:
At E &S Available-for-sale securities 30 = - 95,556 - 95,556
& xn Cash flow hedges 0 - - 2,381 - 2,381
HENENFERTH Release of translation reserve on disposal
LI/ THW B8 of a subsidiary classified as assets
LRIES held for sale 30 - - (13,104) - (13,104)
AEELENE LT Total comprehensive income for the year - 745973 84,833 - 830,806
mREEA AR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
R GRE 280 50% % 75% earned from retained profits to
ENEHES contingency reserve 30 - (242,407) 242,407 - -
MR AR R EERE T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 30 - 18,489 (18,489) - -
HENENFERTR Derecognition of non-controlling interests
LI/ TEW LERAIARY on disposal of a subsidiary classfied
R as assets held for sale - - - (12972) (12.972)
BRZZE-ZFRKE Dividends paid related to 2013 - (1,500,000) - - (1,500,000)
FZE-ME+ZB=+—H41% Balance as at 31 December 2014 2,000,000 5,070,815 1,821,199 - 8,892,014
REE R Profit for the year - 725,152 - - 725,152
e il 6 Other comprehensive income:
A ELA Available-for-sale securities 30 - = (201,628) - (201,628)
& xn Cash flow hedges 0 - - 2,707 - 2,707
AEELENREH Total comprehensive income for the year - 725,152 (198,921) - 526,231
MR EA R AR Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
MBS R 554140 50% 5 75% earned from retained profits to
ENRAEE contingency reserve 30 - (221,244) 221,244 - -
BRI &R E 2R R Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 30 - 26,329 (26,329) - -
EfZE-mERE Dividends paid related to 2014 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
F-Z-RAFE+=F=1—H4%1% Balance as at 31 December 2015 2,000,000 5,251,052 1,817,193 - 9,068,245

F126E 219 FrEfftE NraMEIRFM—E65 o The notes on pages 126 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EERBISARAT —=—AEF1H% 123



,/T\ fy_l ﬁ/)lbi%‘%

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-RF+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2015

ZELSHEAERE

Cash flows from operating activities

2014
THAT

HK$'000

ZE RGN Operating profit 769,576 796,910
FAT SIEL FY1FEE - Adjustment for:
B WA Interest income (846,024) (910,774)
FESH Interest expense 188,653 176,655
=N PN Dividend income 9 (72,748) (34,512
Eils Depreciation 10 17,772 24,841
B R ITRSUEA YT LERES Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 59,515 74,756
TRORME (Bl1%), 1% % (Write-back)/charge of loan impairment
allowances 14 (242) 906
Al E SR IERA Amortisation of unrealised loss on
ERERIE AT R AR available-for-sale securities
= iR transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 30 - 13
IEAI RN 4R Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 7,528 8,395
BT WS 25 Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (122,010) (58,632)
HEDERAFERTH Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
i E A~ ml e classified as assets held for sale 13 - (12,991)
TR T AR ERED) Change in fair value of financial
instruments (5,037) 2,268
MRS AR FEZD) Fair value changes of cash flow hedges
AW TR transferred to income statement 30 3,242 2,852
BUF & Interest received 851,007 940,255
BEAF A Interest paid (161,844) (228,441)
xR fré% BER~ &ﬁ’le T Cash flows from operating activities
2EWLSHBINERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 689,388 782,501
FREEEBE="ABEIEH Change in time deposits with original
EHGFERE) maturity of more than three months (3,237,239) (69,270)
M UWCCFRE B Change in remittance receivables 19,090 (11,532)
TR ~ e REA R~ Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets (65,900) (3,416)
EREE Change in loan portfolio 4,069,579 6,695,842
N ﬁ mﬁlﬁi RS FF 2 & Change in accounts payable, accrued
E A s) expenses and other liabilities (4,155) 179,871
RS AR AR S Change in insurance liabilities, net (117,718) (146,060)
SNTSEH ZEFR Exchange differences 55,156 71,313
ZEMSI® Cash generated from operation 1,408,201 7,499,249
BAFIR Taxation paid (49,500) (62,003)
KXE SR L2 Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,358,701 7,437,246
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BREZEDABIERE

Cash flows from investing activities

N5 L& E & 7 Purchase of fixed assets 24 (9,293) (8,757)
T SE ] 4 & 5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,265,100) (6,034,625)
T SE45 5 = B HjE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (2,112,356) (2,624,340)
o S e g [3] ] i S IE 25 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
Fr 15 ZX3m available-for-sale securities 3,232,635 4,324,683
2Bl #5752 5 ik 5 Proceeds from redemption of
FT 15 ZX3m held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 956,997 1,973,405
HEDLEAFERTH Disposal of a subsidiary classified as
MEAR - HBREN € R assets held for sale , net of cash
ZRIN ST E and cash equivalents disposed of 13 - (12,705)
BRI HEIEAFAR B Dividend received from
available-for-sale securities 72,748 34,512
KRB TR 25 Net cash used in investing activities (2,124,369) (2,347,827)
RANAE (RE), R 2 Net cash (outflows)/inflows before
financing (765,668) 5,089,419
REEFBAERE cash flows from financing activities
KT UE S TS 5 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 22,991,809 30,401,011
JRE B & 1TSS Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (22,526,495)  (27,524,884)
EfRRE Dividends paid 16 (350,000) (1,500,000)
BRSE ST BT B Net cash generated from financing activities 115,314 1,376,127
NERZE[ANESTE OBL) Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
b1 D21 cash equivalents (650,354) 6,465,546
FONERERNELIE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 8,413,912 1,948,567
ICENMERZERMNETE N Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (1,008) (207)
FANERERNEIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 7,762,550 8,413,912
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o il B

BERBIEFERAR(RDH ) REMH
BB (S [REA]) NEEMSIRE
EEREFEITIIRA2MHNEEM S
wEEN (BREREEANDRIEEM SR
AN FEIENRIEE) BEQIA
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) which is a
collective term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASS) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance come into operation during
the financial year, as a result, there are changes to presentation
and the disclosure of certain information in the Group'’s financial
statements.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New standards and amendments effective on 1
January 2015

The following amendments to HKFRSS effective in 2015
are relevant to the Group:

° “Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2010-2012
Cycle” and “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle” include changes to a number
of standards. The amendments have no material
impact on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
September 2014. It replaces the guidance
in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income without
the possibility to recycle these results to the
income statement. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For
financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the
recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9
relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness
by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness
tests. It requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the hedged ratio to be the
same as the one management actually use for
risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to
that currently prepared under HKAS 39.
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The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is considering the
implications of the standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognised when a customer obtains control of a
good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service.

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and the related
interpretations. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with early adoption permitted.
The Group is considering the implications of the
standard.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases. The standard
introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements
in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently. The Group is yet to assess
the full impact of the standard on its financial
position and results of operations. The standard
is mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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. “Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2012-2014
Cycle” includes changes to a number of
standards. The amendments largely apply to
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The Group is considering the
implications of the standards.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2015.

@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities used for issuing mortgage-backed securities,
namely HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited and
Bauhinia MBS Limited) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company. They are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interests
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b)y Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests without change of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.3. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.
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2.4.

2.5

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on
an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Upfront arrangement fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining
interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.
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A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel.

financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.
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Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (fair
value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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2.6.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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o observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant. For exposures which
are not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups
of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period
to period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount
of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale investment or a group of available-for-sale
investments is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of the instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is
reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are treated as renegotiated
loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail
Bond Issuance Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued
under the Medium Term Note (MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities issued are recognised on the trade date.
Other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise.
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement
of financial position when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
iS negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain
or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”); or, (i)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash
flow hedge"”). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives
designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b)y Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;
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Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions),

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income;

Exchange differences arising from the above
process are reported in shareholders’ equity as
translation reserve; and

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are taken to the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
ocCcurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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2.19.Leases

@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes
place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.
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2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for
on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are
primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMES) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adequate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts.
If the assessment shows that the carrying amount of
its guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate
in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (i) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured on residential
properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee
cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to
SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; and (vi) to operate
a centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance
loans. By their nature, the Group's activities are principally
related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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3.2.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition, mortgage insurance, SME
guarantee business and Microfinance Scheme. The ALCO
oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of pricing
economics and associated risks for business transactions,
whilst taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board. The ORC
is responsible for ensuring that all business entities and
line functions maintain an effective operational risk and
internal control framework. The ORC is also responsible
for providing directions and resolving issues related to
policies, controls and management of operational issues
referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring prompt and
appropriate corrective action in response to audit findings
related to operational risks or internal controls. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review
of the internal control systems of the Company. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on ligquid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria, (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group
are spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
26). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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@@ RITFFAERB MK EMEET (@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
ZHE IN98 15 e B Bk = 15 DT XL RS account of collateral held or other credit enhancements
DHTEATR - are analysed as follows:

REFE R B FREEENE The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial

S5HIKEES MBS - NERHR assets of the Group are equal to their carrying

FRERIINIEEEIIXR S amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of

AR - the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group are as
follows:

F-®-5F F-2OF
t=A=+-8A +t=A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
F#&T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B MR Total risk-in-force
— BB RS — mortgage insurance business 13,408,560 13,117,846
— E R RS — other guarantee and insurance
business 2,996,377 2,094,200

16,404,937 15,212,046
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Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as

N follows:

F-=—FHF TFZZ—NUF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
THET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R E IR E Neither past due nor impaired 11,190,707 15,212,222
6 HA{E R R E Past due but not impaired 311,439 358,920
B RE Impaired 983 2,241
RS A0 Gross loan portfolio 11,503,129 15,573,383
BIFOR B % Allowance for loan impairment (817) (1,734)
11,502,312 15,571,649

T 2 REF R AR @ 5 IR AR Rk B 1Y The credit quality of loans that were neither past due

HRAAMERER  A5%
AR M0 BT R R St
SRR

nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
be assessed by reference to the internal rating system
adopted by the Group.

F-=—H5F TF—DHmF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
F#&xT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

L7 Grades:
1E349 1t03 11,169,818 15,191,051
4% 4 1,271 -
5% 5 19,618 21,171
11,190,707 15,212,222
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

T-F—Mm%F
+=—RA=+—8H
As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
A Past due:
=MNAKMAT Three months or less 309,988 358,190
INNAZATE ¢ Six months or less but
BEBI="A over three months 455 58
NNABE Over six months 996 672
S Total 311,439 358,920
HA i m R EM{ETZHE Of which fair value of collateral and
Insg e pER A FE other credit enhancement 3,109,508 2,583,822
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$983,000 (2014: HK$2,241,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2014:
HK$5,061,000).

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved
by the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody’s) and F-2 (Fitch).
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According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

RIFINEBAE XA E) TR TTE
(FrEER BaRkEE) T
511 2 3 B R 3% UF TE R A1 X i
SIEFPES AT « INEHA F
RBEWR - WRBIEHKTTA
B IFREMR

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

A &I 3 FEZEMIS
Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity E#
securities securities Total
F-E-5%+-A=+-H Tz TR THET
As at 31 December 2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3a AAA/Aaa 15,537 1,202,859 1,218,396
AA- 2 AA+ /Aa3 £ Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,306,845 6,755,670 10,062,515
A-EA+/A3EAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 976,895 2,315,472 3,292,367
J=kiil Total 4,299,277 10,274,001 14,573,278
At EIEH RBEREEEA
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity BA
securities securities Total
F-E-mF+-A=1+-H AL TEL TAL
As at 31 December 2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Aaa 500,000 1,205,035 1,705,035
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,051,831 6,348,593 9,400,424
A- ZA+/A3EAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 1,198,242 1,615,167 2,813,409
J=ki] Total 4,750,073 9,168,795 13,918,868
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2015 would increase the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$9 million (2014-
HK$1 million) and decrease by around HK$9 million (2014
HK$1 million) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2015, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by around HK$0.2 million
(2014: higher by less than HK$0.1 million) and the fair value
reserve would have been higher by around HK$7 million
(2014 HK$7 million) as at 31 December 2015. If interest rates
had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards,
profit for the year would have been higher by around HK$0.1
million (2014 lower by less than HK$0.1 million) and the fair
value reserve would have been lower by around HK$7 million
(2014: HK$7 million).

As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$15 million higher (2014:
HK$15 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$15
million lower (2014: HK$15 million).

As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$7
million higher (2014: HK$9 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for
the year would have been around HK$7 million lower (2014:
HK$9 million).
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As at 31 December 2015, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$23 million lower (2014:
HK$10 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$23 million
higher (2014: HK$10 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are fully
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,

\K
DK e

F=Z-1%+=-A=+-H Asat31December 2015

categorised by currency.

o
HKD
TER
HK$'000

e
UsD
AT
HK$'000

Ao
Other foreign

currencies
TiEx
HK$'000

&
Total
TER
HK$'000

iy Assets
NekEER % Cash and short-term funds 18,651,940 2,350,198 5,229 21,007,367
R R 8 B3R Interest and remittance receivables 203,143 72,462 51,173 326,778
TEEBTA Derivative financial instruments 473,079 324 - 473,403
g Cerage: £ Loan portfolio, net 11,502,312 - - 11,502,312
EARR : Investment securities:

—AENE — available-for-sale 2,874,408 3,588,811 175,148 6,638,367

e — held-to-maturity 3,835,900 5,824,429 613,672 10,274,001
FANFOR - e REMAS  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 41,082 46,059 98 87,239

EE 7 7= Fixed assets 26,630 - - 26,630
BRI A Reinsurance assets 128,653 - - 128,653
REBE Total assets 37,737,147 11,882,283 845,320 50,464,750
il Liabilities
R & Interest payable 136,257 1,814 32,782 170,853
RS - BT R Accounts payable, accrued expenses

Hitr 57 67 and other liabilities 4,795,051 372 - 4,795,423
TESBTE Derivative financial instruments 1,821,927 - - 1,821,927
LEHIA R Current income tax liabilities 129,153 - - 129,153
BIEHAA R Deferred income tax liabilities 37,093 - - 37,093
RE fufi Insurance liahilties 978,845 - - 978,845
BERIREILE Debt securities issued 20,704,457 1,387,954 11,370,800 33,463,211
RREF Total liabilities 28,602,783 1,390,140 11,403,582 41,396,505
2 Net position 9,134,364 10,492,143  (10,558,262) 9,068,245
RERERINEG UL Off-balance sheet net notional

position* (14,569,037) 1,387,277 11,306,888 (1,874,872)
' i # “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

SONTRATAE S S T A
EATITERBIA(ERA difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency

SURE = 4 5 3k o ik
WX{EEZK?RITEL BN derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
RINBLETMEEAFER , )

e reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their

fair values.
& Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
© emEANETR - yIecE B

Y Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
HK$5.1 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.3 billion and renminbi
of HK$2 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

o B EESZE T RER
K% ~ A3{ZB TR TTRSS
IE %5 R 2012 T8 A R T £
Sz HE2HRAET
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H oM
%L Otherforeign B

) currencies Total
THL T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-WE+=-A=+—RB Asat31December 2014

R ASSEts
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 14,194,978 4,225,761 751 18,421,490
R ROCFR Interest and remittance receivables 226,300 65,397 59,154 350,851
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 556,962 - - 556,962
THAE B Loan portfolio, net 14,876,420 695,229 - 15,571,649
AR Investment securities:
—AfHE — available-for-sale 3,285,364 2,264,151 184,647 5.734,162
— R Z5E — held-to-maturity 3,534,737 4,779,118 854,940 9,168,795
M FOR - e REMAZ=  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 20123 101 - 20,224
EER" Fixed assets 35,109 = = 35,109
BRER~ Reinsurance assets 144,179 - - 144,179
R BE Total assets 36,874,172 12,029,757 1,099,492 50,003,421
ffk Liahilties
R HIE Interest payable 96,275 7,447 40,322 144,004
RIFHEIR » NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
H i and other liabilities 4,751,861 47,717 - 4,799,578
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,575,968 - - 1,575,968
LA R Current income tax liabilities 133,301 = - 133,301
B EH I 5 Deferred income tax liabilities 76,298 - - 76,298
R AR Insurance liabilities 1,112,089 - - 1,112,089
BR{IREIES Debt securities issued 16,273,562 4,221,469* 12,775,098** 33,270,129
HREH Total liabilities 24,019,354 4,276,633 12,815,420 41,111,407
RO Net position 12,854,818 7,753,124 (11,715,928) 8,892,014
REffikINeS Wse:  Off-balance sheet net notional
position* (17,833,990) 3,523,133 12,702,831 (1,612.976)
# ['BREnmRIMNFEEZNEFES] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EOTTAESLRTA(ZTEA difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
PURR AR S F T 5 MR a8 X derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
MM BYETMEHNTEY reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
ZE&i o fair values.
% SIS ETT o e Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
S BB FEASIZ S T HEE ** Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
FAE % ~ 48178 TTHY R T(RSS HK$4.8 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.8 billion and renminbi
W R 17128 T AR TR of HK$1.7 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

FiES - HE B AET
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-MIRE  ZABNE —-EHE
E=AF E-F ik
L Over Over Over RBELNE Fits
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-nterest =1
1month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
Thn THT Tén THT T THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE-REFZB=1-R Asat31December 2015
R Assets
NeRESERE Cash and short-term funds 4,362,986 8,265,000 8,300,438 - - 78943 21,007,367
LGN Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 326,778 326,778
fTEeBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 473,403 473,403
RRAA#4 Loan portfolio, net 11,425,841 36,035 12,784 27,406 246 - 11,502,312
AR : Investment securiies:
— A — avallable-for-sale 601,873 1,365,585 810,218 1,521,601 - 2,339,090 6,638,367
e CEE — held-to-maturity 176,973 232,505 551,128 5241407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001
FNTA  REREMAT  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 45,958 - - - - 41,281 87,239
TAR Fited assets - = s - - 26630 26630
BRRA® Reinsurance assets - - - - - 128,653 128,653
AEEE Total assets 16,613,631 9899125 9674568 6790414 4,072,234 3414778 50,464,750
i Liabilities
RftFE Interest payable - - - - - 170,853 170,853
R TR Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Aot and other liabilities 4,717,601 - - - - 771822 4795423
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1821921 1821927
el Current income tax liabilties - - - - - 129,153 129,153
BREBAR R Deferred income tax liabiities - - - - - 37,093 37,093
BBARE Insurance liabilties - - = = = 978,845 978,845
BRATREIER DeDt securities issued 7,030,867 9,016,856 6,690,366 7,563,986 3,161,136 - 33463211
A ER Total liabilities 11,748,468 9,016,856 6,690,366 7,563,986 3,161,136 3,215,693 41,396,505
fle R ERD B AT Total interest sensitivity gap* 4,865,163 882,269 2,984,202 (773,572) 911,098
FIEATAET B (5 0a8H  Interest rate derivatives (notional
£ZU8H) amounts of net position) (5,080,017)  (12,685,001) 6,668,761 7172025 2,049,360
* RITATESH T ASELSX * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

B AITRSSIEFRIZZN on the debt securities issued.
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i

Upto

1 month
Thr

HKS'000

1 month to
3months
Tin

F
Qver
3months
to 1 year
T
HKS'000

—EHE
ESiE
QOver
Tyearto
5years
L
HKS'000

Over
5 years
Thn

AR
Non-interest
bearing
ThL
HKS'000

F-E-mE+-B=t-H Asat31December 2014
= Assets
NeREsRe Cash and short-term funds 9,113,670 7239428 1,543,602 - - 524,790 18421490
LY Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 350,851 350851
fIESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 556,962 556,962
ey Loan portfolio, net 14,465,392 1,050,667 19,738 34,286 1,966 - 15,571,649
EFRA : Investment securiies:

—miLE — avalable-for-sale 1,348,592 1,134,068 1,072,891 1194522 - 984,089 5,734,162

—BEEYE — held-to-maturity 11225 250,103 929463 4,388 264 3,989,740 - 9,168,795
TR BEREMAE  Prepayments, deposits and

Other assets - - - - - 20204 20,204

BER> Fiked assets - - - - - 3,109 35,109
BREAFE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 144,179 144,179
AERE Total assets 24,938,879 9,674,266 3,965,694 5617,072 3,591,306 2,616,204 50003421
il Liabilities
RiftFIE Interest payable - - - - - 144,044 144,044
R - BT R Accounts payable, accrued expenses

=0 and other liabilities 420659 = = = - 512919 4,799,578
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,575,968 1,575,968
ELnil Current income tax fiabilties - - - - - 133301 133301
BRHAR R Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - - 76,298 76298
BRaE Insurance liabiities - - = = = 1,112,089 1,112,089
BRORSIEH DeDt securities issued 8,167,682 10,009,674 4002428 8,040417 3049928 - 33210129
AEEE Total liabilities 12,394,281 10,009,674 4002428 8,040417 3,049,928 3,614,679 1,111,407
GGt Total interest sensitivity gap* 12,5459 (335,408) (436,730) (2,423,345) 541,378
FIEFTETE (56,258  Interestrate derivatives (notional

2U4H) amounts of net position) (3960,694) (12,118732) 3,976,360 7,800,506 2,689,584

* RIUTATESRITASELSX & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

B AT IEFRIZNA on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.
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() FITETAIASRH (i)

-MAR

Upto
1 month
TER

Non-derivative cash outflows

-MENE
2=/
Over

1 month to
3 months
TiEn

=AMBUE —FHE
E-§ ik
Over Over BENE
3months  1yearto Over <t}
to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEn TiEn Ti#n TiEn

HK$'000
F-E-RFET-F=1+-H Asat31December2015
il Liabilities
BRITRSIIH Debt securities issued (4,150,451)

HK$'000

(4,266,029)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(9,279,444)  (13,610,074)  (4,078,459)  (35,384,457)

—M AR

Upto
1 month
AL
HK$'000

1'month to
3months
T
HK$'000

—EpE

EhE
Over AEE
3months 1 yearto Qver
to 1 year 5years 5years
AT AL TAL

F-Z-WE+ZA=1+-HB Asat31December 2014

fifi Liabilities
BRITREIA Debt securities issued (2331,361)

(3,306,552)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00

(10913624)  (14974,608) (31137800 (34,639,925
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iy PTEIEIMESRACR (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
H)

-MABE  ZARBE —E0E
Z=AB 2-F gt
-MNAH Over Over over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1 year to Over k.
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TER TAn TAR TiEx TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-fFE+-H=1-H Asat31December 2015
RTAIEEAER 4S8 IE : Derivative financial

instrument settled:
—AHEE — on net basis (1,232) (60) 10,130 (2,397) - 6,441
— BHEE — 0 gr0ss basis
hiohiex Total outflow (2,935923)  (4,127,509)  (1,893,649)  (5,096,754) (758,326)  (14,812,161)
AR Total inflow 2,860,597 3,958,892 1,936,884 3,741,106 665498 13,162,977

(76,558) (168,677) 53,365  (1,358,045) (92,828)  (1,642,743)

—MNAR QOver Over RENE

Upto 1 month to 3months 1yearto QOver

1 month 3months 10 1year 5years 5years

TAL TAT BT TAL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-B-ME+-A=1+-8  Asat31December 2014
RTAIEREERTESBTE : Derivative financial

instrument settled:
—AHEE — onnet basis 488 (638) 8,833 (10,453) (1522) (3292)
—BHEE — 0N gross basis
et Total outflow (1,862,366) (3,690,577) (6,976,967) (6,705,515) (873342 (20,108,767)
MABE Total inflow 1779930 3,523,050 6,896,736 57122179 878,131 18,800,026

(81,948) (168,165) (71.399) (993,789) 3,261 (1,312,033)
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(b) ZHB DT (b)  Maturity analysis
TEREREERARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
HFIAERE - DT BXRE~ K relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
AREIEAE R © period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

—MARE EAARE  -FHE
2=/ E-F Z5E
WHES -1MAR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over TR BE
ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT TERL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-7%+-A=+-H Asat31December2015

&= Assets

NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 68,535 4,373,395 8,265,000 8,300,437 - - - 21,007,367

AR Loan portfolio 3,425 83,115 177,580 744,518 3,418,852 7,074,094 1,545 11,503,129

EHRR Investment securities

—WitE — available-for-sale - 601,873 477,899 1,697,903 1,521,602 - 2,339,090 6,638,367

—RAZHH — held-to-maturity - 176973 - 783,633 5241407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001

BRER” Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 128653 128,653
71,960 5235356 8,920,479 11,526,491 10,181,861 11,146,082 2,469,288 49,551,517

il Liabilities

RIS R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 978845 978,845

BATREEH Deht securities issued - 4,906,271 4,137,561 8,915,442 13,142,801 3,161,136 - 33,463,211

4,106,271 4,137,561 8,915,442 13,142,801 3,161,136 978,845 34,442,056

s —&E
M ‘ BRF
MasE  —MAR QOver QOver

Repayable Upto 1monthto ~ 3months  1yearto TR &
on demand Tmonth  3months  to1year 5years Undated Total
BT BT ThT FHT TAT : TAT FEL
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

F-Z-mE+=A=+-H Asat31December 2014

R Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 523620 9114840 7239428 1543602 - - - 18421490
e i Loan portfolio 3202 800,455 216664 1871200 3965593 8713561 2708 15,573,383
EARR Investment securities
—WRiHE — available-for-sale - 998,080 - 1669663 2082330 - 984089 5734162
—EHEE — helo-to-maturity = 11,225 17,458 929462 4620910 3,589,740 - 9168795
BRER Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 144,179 144,179
526822 10924600 7473550 6013927 10668833 12303301 1,130,976 49,042,009
il Liabilities
REH 5t Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 111208 1,112,089
BARSES Debt securities issued - 2303861 320029 10538022 14,178,022 3,049,928 - 33210129

— 2303861 320029 10538022 14178022 3049928 1,112,089 34,382.218
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current income tax liabilities are expected to be
recovered or settled within twelve months from the
reporting date. Other assets and liabilities included
in the statement of financial position are expected to
be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or
below at origination, or other thresholds as specified from
time to time. The Group also provides financial guarantee
cover to Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted
to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong, insurance
cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated
by such Als and secured on residential properties, and in
respect of lump-sum loans advanced by such Als to owners
of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for
land premium settlement and secured on these properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of borrowers means longer payout period
and larger loan balance will be over time. This will affect
the frequency and severity of claims as there is a risk of the
property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers and
excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including
the financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage
reinsurers in accordance with the approved selection
framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the Group relies
on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers
to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2015, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2014:
HK$4 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2014: HK$4
million) higher.
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3.6. ERIBTERAGRHATEE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ 2DFEMIT (@ Fair value estimation
TRINTEAFEREHE The following table shows financial instruments
FAGHEE)RINNERIT A - recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
NFEEMRRIENAT different levels of fair value hierarchy have been

defined as follows:

J FERMZREHRR o Quoted prices in active markets for identical
FRAGZIRN(TE — assets or liabilities (“Level 17);

Bl

. BE—EREEZIRN o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
SN AR AR 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
B (048 ) sklaBE (R A either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
MR HEHT ) AT M ER 2 B from prices) (“Level 2"); and
(IE=ED: &

o BRAESHARHAEE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
FAME 2 T EHE (T on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
AMBZHE)(E= ("Level 3").

Bl -

F-5-ZF+-A=1+-H F-E-mE+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2015 Asat 31 December 2014

F-F FZR f<k 1 F-F £R

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2
TER TiEL TER T#r T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

"= Assets
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 473,403 473,403 - 556,962 556,962
M H &R Available-for-sale securities
—RFIH — Debt securities 2,264,054  2,035223 4,299,277 3,023,999 1,726,074 4,750,073
— Bt s — Other securities 2,339,090 - 2,339,090 984,089 - 984,089
4,603,144 2,508,626 7,111,770 4,008,088 2,283,036 6,291,124
il Liabilities
fTESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,821,927 1,821,927 - 1,575,968 1,575,968

FANGAMIARIRE AL Debt securities issued
ATETHITAREL  designated as at fair value
BRIHRSIES through profit or loss upon
initial recognition - 343,398 343,398 - 336,201 336,201

- 2165325 2,165,325 = 1,912,169 1,912,169
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H BRAFETENEHIA
FRAE RN MR 2 788
BRABETE(EZE) -

FTAREE F—E5F_FH
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) SH—FEWemIA

TERBRMZXZ0ER
THE HAFE2RE
ZHRBEOTZ AN ©
BRI R AIIAR 5
o0 E B30 M X 5P
RHGZL - Tlih
= BN RSN A
B ES R4 0 11X
ENMRRRIZAFEE
5K R M E A FE T 47 B R
Zo MRBRFEITE
R FHKAGRE PR
A ME=HM - EXAD
KREZMEEMN &AL
RERAFEONE N
ZRRITEATFE M
XENEHTARKE
REE—IF -

No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These derivatives are fair
valued using forward interest rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.



(b)

SHEF
AR
s

SHAK
BRIRSIES

HEUDFEITENSRAS
M

T=F-AF+ZA=+—H
E—F-—ME+ZA=1+—
A AEHEFRTMSRRE
BAFEEZHRZINEHMIAN
KEESAFEHIBEAT
[ - BREKEES A FERS
MEBIAN  TRAFAR
FETENSHTE ZKE
B R FEERRFERMR
All -

KA

Carrying
amount

TER
HK$'000

Financial assets
Investment securities

— held-to-maturity 10,274,001

Financial liabilities

DeDt Securities issued 33,119,813

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

Fo3-EF+ZA=1-A FI2-mETZR=1-R
As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014
KEE
ATE g-R 4R Carmying ATE £k 5°F
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount Fair value Level1 Level2
Tén T TEn ThL ThL Tk Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

10,506,512 10,206,401 300,111 9,168,7% 9,444,285 7,348,169 2,096,116

33,335,388 - 33335388 32,933,928 32,936,482 = 32,936,482
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HiteRMITARFENEER
NIITERBRRIR

(if)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:

Ne REPRE (i)

NekEHEEBRER
TEX FEEFNA
FEMEKEE R
TR (FREEE D TR
A BT A FETE
T A R 2215 52 XUBR £
S IAT 5T 7 F K
R FERITE 2
NERE - Btk - 75K
WAFEHETEKE
E-

DIRRE B B (ii)

TRAE THEEER
ZEHIMK o /MR 2 BT AR
AERBEEMEILER -
FH it - TRA S B IR
BRAFHENSEMGIT
IEFIRE — HEEEIH (iii)
RAEZIRARFZRF
BEUTNRER /X5
AR 0 B A o e R B
MIFERAE - WRA
BAERXER FHA
KW R ERF R ZIE S
PrREI T (A 1T A FE -

B RITRFIES

NFELRMIDETHH
wNUTE - ET KA
RN GG 2&ET
) 57 51 ) 14 HARR &9 T A
WaERMEHRBIAS
MEMIEEE -
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Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank
deposits. The fair value of floating-rate deposits is
the carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations.
Where this information is not available, fair value
has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes
where guoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.
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3.7.

(v)  Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) in
December 2003 and January 2004 with the fair
value approximating the carrying amount.

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (the Financial
Secretary),

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

o To support the Group'’s stability and growth,

o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (the
Guidelines) issued by the Financial Secretary, by reference
largely to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework.
The minimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach
or likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the
Financial Secretary. During the year, the Group complied
with all of the capital requirement set out in the Guidelines
by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting

period.

2014
FETT
HK$'000
i &N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
IREB m A Retained profits 5,251,052 5,070,815
UK A% S, Proposed dividends (725,000) (350,000)
RS 18 Contingency reserve 1,632,660 1,437,745
H AR Other reserve 99,788 208,489

LARE 22T DT HOR((E Allowance for loan impairment under
FT{EZ 14 & collective assessment 817 1,734
B Deductions (79,742) (36,118)
BAER B AR Total capital base 8,179,575 8,332,665
G Capital Adequacy Ratio 21.9% 23.5%
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TREE S RAEASHNM S HKREK
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3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group's statement of financial position but are subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
agreements that cover similar financial instruments. The
disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross and
net amounts, as well as provide additional information on

how such credit risk is mitigated.

DEDOEL
HEE
Carrying
amounts

on the
statement of

Fo3-EEtR=1-A
As at 31 December 2015

BXEFRERFRRR
pikilka 8
Related amount
not set off
in the statement
of financial
position*

gt

gt
Cash

fTESMIL
Derivative

&
Carrying
amounts

onthe

A8 statement of

F-E-REt=A=1-A
As at 31 December 2014

0L
Related amount
not set off
in the statement
of financial
position®

Vative A

financial
position

THR
HK$'000

financial
instruments
TH7R
HK$'000

collateral Net
received amount*

Tin T
HK$'000 HKS'000

financial
instruments
ThT
HKS'000

financial
position

AT
HKS'000

collateral Net
paid amount’
TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

SRAF Financial assets
FHEESRIE  Postive fair values for
»¥E derivative financia
instruments 473,403 (344,085) - 129,318 556,962 (348,281) (20,750) 187,931
SRR Financial liabilities
RAETESRIE  Negative fair values for
L¥E derivative financial
instruments 1,821,927 (344,085) (45,958) 1,431,884 1,575,968 (348,281) - 1,227,681

# [HEREFREMSRARNHNE
) EXAFREELZHHAANODINE
BERIFHEMARGSERA
R/ RS -

* AP R S E A AR LT
ARMEMAT /TR - BB RE
HrMRZ 5N FiEs - BIOREREERN
ERMAMR, R 7= F SAEFEH -

Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the statement of
financial position” represent the amounts of financial liabilities/assets
position that are subject to netting arrangements or similar agreements
including CSA.

Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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4. RBEDIHETTRRIR

REFARBN T =M EFEN R = RA

5151 MK 250

FzEit Rk ARHAS

RESFEZREEMAR (BETHEXER
TRARRETELNESETH) » 58210
FRYEAET BB

4.1

4.2,

ERASHRIERE

ANER A E B 1 B BT R AA A DA TR AR
B BERESREE NIt AKESER
B - AEE S H A S EFANRZ
HaE - EARAIH STRAE A N BITTR
BT ARKIN SR D HT - RERES
BRTHRHFITEHA - BFIERS
SEREANRYEE IR —AEK
ARRFRREZE - KHASD IR
PRI R AR M E TR © B
BREITREASIRA - 2KEITR
REFBEEENREILERESAEXEAS
HENR - IETHRER - it Rk
W& me A B8 THERBRIZRSE
B - UFENMEIT SRR ERR SR
ZRWESR °

BRAAF-E—BF A=+
B 0 K EEAE M E 20 0 B -

TTETAEMAFE

HEEFRMZARNNESRIEAFE
KAGBEREEE - FRGEEAFE
(i8R BE A FAER - 1ZETRE
I F RN ERA BN AR
TEATAZE RE LT o FTEEE T
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BRSEBR IR R AT LR T AN © FERIAT 1R
T WERBNERATNERZH
&« BARM AN EZE N REE DT
HTFHE33 -

TESMIET T —AF+_A
=+— BMKEEEDE19MHKE -

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

41.

4.2,

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
on a regular basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2015 is disclosed in Note 20.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair value, they are validated and periodically
reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area
that created them. All models are validated before they
are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data. Sensitivity
analysis for market rate movement is set out in Note 3.3.

The carrying amount of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 19.
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4.3.

4.4,

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination
of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence
of deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology,
and operational and financing cash flows.

The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 21(a).

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such as due to significant
deterioration of such investments or selling close to maturity,
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

The carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments as at
31 December 2015 is disclosed in Note 21(b).
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7.

TRAER 5. Segment information
AEFHEFEERENSEBAERLS - & The Group is principally engaged in mortgage related businesses
il 25 A R R AR R DATE AR 8 BT 3K in Hong Kong. Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the
MAfTFS LA - RIEERBTKEGIRN mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds
FIFmENBSRRESHTHERE M AIRSB from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
W HIHTE L 55 o RREFVER — DK business. The Group is also organised in such a way that resource
BETURBARILFIER 2 —9 3K allocation and performance measurement are based on the Group
R IR 7 BE A ST © as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related businesses.
FI2UAN 6. Interestincome
2015 2014
FHET 5T
HK$°000 HK$'000
WHAE Loan portfolio 240,202 329,292
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 207,807 230,482
U515 Investment securities 390,487 342,592
838,496 902,366
FIBEZH 7. Interest expense

2015

THERT
HK$'000

T R E R EERLEITE S & Bank loans and debt securities issued

2014
TAT
HK$'000

BAITHESIES wholly repayable within 5 years 207,909 236,742
HNTRFRNBHEILME X175 Debt securities issued and other
Sk H Kk HAth not wholly repayable within 5 years 40,259 14,669
248,168 251,411
REEHMBEZHBFE24725 T (—F—M Included within interest expenses are HK$247 million (2014
£ 2578 70) FHAEA N FE T it AR HK$250 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
HES B o through profit or loss.
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8.

ZinRE R BRI SHKEKR 8.

ER T (M (@) FFHE 27(a))

Gross premiums written (Note (a) and

2015

FHERT
HK$'000

Revenue account for mortgage insurance and
guarantee business

2014
TAET
HK$'000

Note 27(a)) 319,137 320,789
BIRR R ZE (M1)E27@)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)) (47,886) (39,023)
RE& 72340 (Ff)E 27(a)) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 271,251 281,766
RAHRZE H R D 85 Decrease in unearned premiums, net 107,362 152,330
BB HIR 2R 2480 (K 27(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 378,613 434,096
BREBI% (L) 25 Net claims written back/(incurred)
(BfF5E 27(b)) (Note 27(b)) 7.583 (10,144)
R EZEE AR 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 386,196 423,952
kg Commission expenses (98,933) (128,934)
BRI A RFERBENAS S H Reinsurers’ share of commission
expenses 15,565 18,125
il Pz Net commission expenses (83,368) (110,809)
HBRERF SR E AR Net premiums earned before
RN management expenses 302,828 313,143
BRI (FE D) Management expenses (Note (b)) (71,149) (57,465)
AR Underwriting gains 231,679 255,678
B5E - Notes:
() ERBIBTRERIBERLSE - PNEHRE (@) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on

R AR BT SRR S - SRR
B RERBIRM A R BB E it 280l £ i
REZMATHMEMN A — LD TR RE

) EEFXIANEI0RE LN~ -

mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises, premiums written from
mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans and on lump-sum loans

to owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land

premium settlement.

(b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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9. HitA 9. Other income
2015 2014
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE A B R THTIR Early prepayment fees and late charges 774 1,233
LA ZEE Exchange difference (38,708) (12,575)
SRITARNFEZRD 2 Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (11,763) (3,541)
AR E ER AR EWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 72,748 34,512
SRR M W 2 (£ 12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 122,010 58,632
HE w2 N EFE R =Bt E 22 & Gain on disposal of a subsidiary classified
H&m(f‘ﬁ&ﬁ) as assets held for sale (Note 13) - 12,991
HAh, Others (2,235) (1,907)
142,826 89,345
ST EANFEZHEY FTUATEMA L Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
M:OEENATFEN AT R TANF the aggregate of (i) HK$332 million fair value loss on hedging
ESHM3322B L (ZF— N4 : 105612 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2014: HK$1,056
VD) R I B A T E U S 3.28 27T million) and HK$328 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(ZZF M4 : 10.601ZB7T) : RI)TAFE (2014: HK$1,060 million); and (i) HK$14 million fair value loss on
KA RS FENSTE T A AT ESH derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2014:
1,400 5 & L (= F —PU4E : 1,000 7 7 7T ) HK$10 million) and HK$6 million fair value gain on debt securities
NIETAAFEZTHITAMRBHE K1TH issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2014:
SZAEH N FEWZE00FHBT( =T —M4F - HK$2 million).
20077 7T) °
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10. Operating expenses

2015 2014
FH&xT FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
8 A AN Staff costs
e REF Salaries and benefits 158,677 148,618
IRIRERA — RE KT K Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 9,313 8,689
DRE Premises
e Rental 30,966 30,497
HAh Others 6,509 8,303
=10 Directors’ emoluments = =
18 (BfE 24) Depreciation (Note 24) 17,772 24,841
W2 F MRS Financial information services 6,075 5,726
it (] 2% Consultancy fees 11,364 6,749
HEMAEZH Other operating expenses 25,972 21,704
266,648 255,627

1. ZEUMENE

11. Auditor’s remuneration

2015

TR
HK$'000

2014
TAET
HK$'000

ZEDEN & Auditor's remuneration
HIZRSS Audit services 1,433 1,378
HAibRS Other services 314 308
1,747 1,686

12. HERFHKRFE

HER AR S
— Y F—H— B2 THEENHIA — realisation of amounts recognised in

12. Net gains on disposal of investments

Net gains on disposal of investments:

H9 3R (9% 30) reserves up to 1 January (Note 30) 129,989 63,023
— RFEE T ETHEH — net losses arising in current year (7,979) (4,391)
122,010 58,632
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13. HESHAHBEATMMESL 13. Disposal of a subsidiary classified as assets

Gl held for sale
REAHERNEZSRERABRERA The Group completed the sale of all its equity in Bauhinia HKMC
ANMENENLZHE T —HE—A Limited (BHKMC) on 24 January 2014, at a cash consideration of
ZtHMBERK  AIeRNAR117L2% approximately HK$117 million. The following are the assets and
JC o HEZ AR EFMAGAT liabilities of BHKMC disposed of:
FH&T
HK$'000
MANA = Current assets 130,106
ma AR Current liabilities (384)
I EH) B Net assets disposed of 129,722
2L 5% (FI)£30) Cumulative translation reserve (Note 30) (13,104)
REE IR AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests (12,972)
B s (£ 9) Gain on disposal (Note 9) 12,991
K Consideration 116,637
HE R = AR & R Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
T
HK$'000
N M Cash consideration 116,637
TENNERERRS Cash and short-term funds disposed of (129,342)
(12,705)
14. FERERE (KE) 14. Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances
2015 2014
FET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEORERK,(KF) Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
— A& 1FE (FHE20()) allowances — collective assessment
(Note 20(b)) 242 (906)
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15. Filn

(a) FLHREWBRAMBREIBLINS

15. Taxation

(a)

Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

BEFEH Hong Kong profits tax

— HHITEH — Current income tax 57,427 60,987

— NAEFEIFE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (13,190) (10,389)
44,237 50,598

BB AN I Taxation outside Hong Kong

— HEIFTISAR — Current income tax - 1,263

12 REFR I Deferred taxation

— ARFEXHEGRE) — Charge/(credit) for current year 187 (924)
44,424 50,937

B A A 1T ROIR B R R IR
16.5% ( =& — U F : 16.5%) Ay T &
ITHREBFGHIKE - N TERB
IRERMBAR  SIEMEERYE
wE AR RITE - BT ITARGR
EE16.5% (ZF —MUF : 16.5%) K
FERRITE S ILNELRTZH o

AR A RFIN B SR AT
ERETENRLSTHERDT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax
rate prevailing in the relevant country was used. Deferred
taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Rk 5 81T A1) Profit before taxation 769,576 796,910
1#£16.5% (—ZE—VH4E : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

MRt E (2014: 16.5%) 126,980 131,490
Tsom - Tax effect of;
— BB IR R = — different tax rate outside Hong Kong - (880)
— BIHHAIA — income not subject to taxation (99,817) (90,015)
— TR T — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 30,451 20,731

— UAFERE — adjustment in respect of prior years (13,190) (10,389)
RIS Taxation charge 44,424 50,937
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(b) MEFKARAIFINIEEH : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:
2014
T
HK$'000
X HAF IR = Current income tax assets
(BT THEME~1R) (included in “Other assets”) 1,115 =
AR I (5 Current income tax liabilities 129,153 133,301
156 EFR I A 3R Deferred income tax liabilities 37,093 76,298
166,246 209,599
F_E-—hRE+-_A=+—HBE=-% There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—OF+=—A=+—H HEAEM=E 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
AR BHIEFIN
BRI CRSE) / AENEEAK The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/
DRENZZHAT liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
AERE
MEBGURIE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances DYEZ P& FH
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
THT AL THx AL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z-mE-A-H Asat 1 January 2014 5468 (4,857) 57,551 (1,006) 57,156
H&?ﬁﬁm BA) /0 (Credited)/charged to the
income Statement (1,961) 1,037 - - (924)
FAREM R (HHE30) Charged to equity (Note 30) - - 19,595 471 20,066
F-E-ME+-RA=1+—H Asat31December 2014 3,507 (3,820) 77,146 (535) 76,298
FhaERM(FA)/ Ml (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (393) 580 - - 187
FREMN(FEA),/ Mk (Credited)/charged to equity
(H£30) (Note 30) - = (39,927) 535 (39.392)
F-Z-R%+=-A=+-H Asat31December 2015 3,114 (3,240) 37,219 - 37,093
F+=1rAn - %Eﬂiﬁ FEBLIN There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
R/ REE liabilities to be settled within 12 months.

194  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2015



16. BB

16. Dividends

2015 2014

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

BUR T mA S F A @A 0.3625  Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625

BT (ZZ—MF : 0.175/87T)

(2014: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 725,000 350,000

F_E-—AFM_ET-—NMEEMAH_-F
—OFEM—_F—=FERBE DI N35Z%5
T(EBRESREBAR7SE L) K15
2770 CE Bk B BT @A 0.25 B T MR
RIAE BB E@BAR0SHE L) e FF— N
FOA-+HHE EFEWEA=-FT—H
FEBREFREEAR03625BIL - HEE
REBRFHNBY  URREFHT25H N
RS -

17. BEREHEL

The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 in respect of 2014 and 2013
were HK$350 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.175 per ordinary
share) and HK$1,500 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.25 per
ordinary share and special dividend of HK$0.5 per ordinary share)
respectively. The directors proposed, in respect of 2015, an
ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625 per ordinary share on 25 April
2016. The proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable
until approval by shareholders.

17. Cash and short-term funds

2015 2014

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RTAE Cash at banks 68,535 523,620
RITEETER Time deposits with banks 20,938,832 17,897,870
21,007,367 18,421,490

pATRERMES A RFRIASWMA
BREATEXRZEHEIT=1ARIIHY

L5 o

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of transaction.

R E Cash at banks 68,535 523,620
fRITE BT Time deposits with banks 7,694,015 7,890,292
e hZERDIEIE Cash and cash equivalents 7,762,550 8,413,912
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18. R F B BICRK

19.

PATS & T B Bz 4 A 2

18. Interest and remittance receivables

2015 2014
TAT

HK$'000

Tz
HK$'000

Interest receivable from

— MRS LY — interest rate swap contracts 140,599 142,224

—IEHRR — investment securities 110,473 91,625

— IRITE T — time deposits with banks 35,218 45,531
TEREA BRI R B R 4y BRfS 38 Interest receivable and instalments,

in transit from loan portfolio 40,488 71,471

326,778 350,851

4=

1771

(a)

AERTH

TETEMNA

REH B THPTE T AX A KH
W BN -

5 R BN A— B &R 2R
WA —AIASRENAE - RS
BEMEHKEME LS IR - [RE
THMEBMIN - RFERXHTH R R
g o ARHENERKR AL F
REBTEREMEER RS LHHE
ERA - REAREFENESRX S
NFREERNEF - FomUBxA

B o

ETMRASRITANBNEH - I T
&5 IR RN TERHE R
BEAE - ERBREY REARKAE
MEN I T AIRHNAFE
It HEAT A A IR A SR A T I 9 £ BT Kk
MARXEL o BEE 37 7 R FoC R X
HERBR) - STETAFREN A%
H =B R (5 7=) AR (A fR) /Y
T TESHMIANEGNRE LS
FBE - ERBEMRANEMIEE -
MITETESBAT RAGZ AT L
1B AIBE B KIER 3 © PIs A BT
ATEAFERTTIX -

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4/
ZUEH ATE BUEH AT(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional B il notional R il
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR TET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THARANHFRUAES () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

PIAETE for accounting purposes
Flkpa Interest rate swaps 374,895 18,800 (478) 1259611 25,130 (290)
dink ik Currency swaps - - - 699,815 4568 -
18,800 (478) 29,698 (494)
(i) AFEXNRTETA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil=$EH Interest rate swaps 14,227,500 454,279 (1,817) 10,327,500 511,217 9,724)
gkt Currency swaps 14,569,037 324 (1,819,638) 18,989,855 16,047 (1,565,750)
454,603 (1,821,449) 5071264 (1575,474)
BEIMTETAAS/(fifF)  Total recognised derivative
B assets/(liabilities) 473,403  (1,821,927) 556,962 (1,575,968)
(b) X&) (b) Hedging activities
WOT4E TAER N FEXN I &R Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
XA eIt EmE  STETEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
KRS RF & KRR A& « AEFR A FE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
A EERIEATRERR Z1THRS currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
IEA A EMNEREEESETSI ZH and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
M2 XU RSN EXURS B ) 22 K0 3 4 in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
BeF—Z—hFE+-_A=+—HEK no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
—E-—NFE+_A=+—8 " HEHE December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

AHEE ARSI APLTETH o
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20. GTRRAEPEN 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) GERASERKE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2015 2014
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB A Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
— 58 — Hong Kong 10,935,170 13,178,873
— BN — Overseas - 695,229
&Ml Commercial - 1,000,000
JEIRIBRRAE Non-mortgage portfolio 567,959 699,281
11,503,129 15,573,383
TR E L % Allowance for loan impairment (817) (1,734)
11,502,312 15,571,649
B EORELE & B S BT EA A R Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
FARSERNE S LT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2015 2014
WERESE S B S 5T2E4  Total allowance for loan impairment
BER A 5 as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%
(b) RBHESHSHESRELE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio
2015 2014
FH&T T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
HETfY Collective assessment
+—H—H As at 1 January 1,734 1,825
TFUzERM (E1), %% (Released)/charged to
(MF5£14) income statement (Note 14) (242) 906
A BT ER Loans written off (2,202) (2,457)
W [B1 2 i EH BT 5k Recoveries of loans previously
written off 1,527 1,460
F+—A=+—H As at 31 December 817 1,734
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EH B RORER B8 - BZ EIKIFR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking

BB RITE - into account the current market value of the collateral.
LAEE AT A BI B R E BT K 5 Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
W : portfolio basis are analysed as follows:
2014
FHET
HK$'000
RERFEE B Gross impaired loan portfolio 983 2,241
RRORER & Allowance for loan impairment (756) (713)
227 1,528
DIFOR B % E/UZT e Allowance for loan impairment as
BER A 5 a percentage of gross impaired
loan portfolio 76.9% 31.8%

U>

HTEJ\@J\ BE BE S TTRES  Grossimpaired loan portfolio as a
B 7t percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%

AR A IR AR 20738 B Allowance for loan impairment under
BER IR FTERZREIL & collective assessment for loans not

individually identified as impaired 61 1,021
() BERASHANRMABAHFTRAS (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan
W portfolio
2015
AR AR LY ARFRHAR B = VLGS
A E FMEWA RTEE
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TET TET FTHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI Amounts receivable:
— %R — within one year 47,001 9,863 56,864
——FREAFNW — after one year but within
five years 173,387 30,780 204,167
—RERF — after five years 330,027 38,339 368,366

550,415 78,982 629,397
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2014
SV GEES) AR EAR] /Y VGRS
RUIE L SIA HULE A
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FET FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R UUHRIR - Amounts receivable:
— —FR — within one year 60,348 12,052 72,400
——FFERFN — after one year but within
five years 214,767 37,431 252,198
—hER — after five years 403,765 46,377 450,142
678,880 95,860 774,740
B A7 5 B A AR R U IR B EOR No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for
(ER/E=0 finance lease receivable.
21. IEHK/H 21. Investment securities
(a) TIEHEIES (a) Available-for-sale securities
2015 2014
FH&xT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
N FESK A FS5IE S Debt securities at fair value
TEAE LM Listed in Hong Kong 224,082 184,647
TEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 807,716 117,882
EEH Unlisted 3,267,479 4,447 544
2N SEAE I 0K & E b iF 25 Other securities at fair value
FEELE™M Listed in Hong Kong 2,339,090 984,089
At A SR Total available-for-sale securities 6,638,367 5,734,162
EMIFHIER SPTREE S KB Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
WRERES - estate investment trusts.
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B RATHIAIZE R o 4 Al 4 B iE A 40 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
D issuers as follows:

RIT R E M S B Banks and other financial institutions 3,453,212 3,652,863
NEIE Corporate entities 655,380 412,563
HR LB Central governments 175,148 684,647
NENA Public sector entities 15,537 -
Hifb Others 2,339,090 984,089
6,638,367 5,734,162
Al EIE AR T ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
2015 2014
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F=E=E As at 1 January 5,734,162 3,860,455
H#0 Additions 4,265,100 6,034,625
& K ke Sale and redemption (3,240,614) (4,329,074)
WE4H Amortisation 3,423 1,019
NEEZD) Change in fair value (111,566) 178,161
SN H ZEEN Exchange difference (12,138) (11,024)
Ft+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 6,638,367 5,734,162
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(b) FHBEEIHAIES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

2014

T
HK$'000

TR A A AN B K B (R 55 0F 5 Debt securities at amortised cost

TEHEALM Listed in Hong Kong 4,430,543 2,972,947
TEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 1,685,300 2,190,400
6,115,843 5,163,347
JEEM Unlisted 4,158,158 4,005,448
BB E 2 HIE A B A Total held-to-maturity securities 10,274,001 9,168,795
R EATNAIZER D A E 2 B HE & Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
I issuers as follows:
2014
T4
HK$'000
RIT R E M S R Banks and other financial institutions 5,569,556 5,341,979
NI\ Corporate entities 3,954,900 3,047,015
NENAH Public sector entities 678,756 680,650
AR B Central governments 70,789 99,151
10,274,001 9,168,795
B R EIT AT SR IR The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:
2015 2014
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 9,168,795 8,560,595
3N Additions 2,112,356 2,624,340
N2 (] Redemption (956,997) (1,973,405)
5 Amortisation (10,951) (9,414)
HNTSCH ZEAN Exchange difference (39,202) (33,321)
F+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 10,274,001 9,168,795
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22. MIBAEIRE

FoE-BF+=A=+-A8 A2AK
GIEPNGES T

AR R
Place of
incorporation

BRRIBERERAR &R

HKMC Mortgage Management Limited ~ Hong Kong

EARBIARA () ERAA  FA
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong

Bauhinia MBS Limited* TEED
Bauhinia MBS Limited* Cayman Islands
BB ERRIEERAR B
HKMC Credit & Guarantee Corporation Hong Kong
Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & 6
Guarantee Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & Hong Kong

Guarantee Corporation Limited
2 BIBBEBCATRBDH R XLEATEE
NAMERL - MAARIEEREXLER
RIERL o

g IX £ 4% )9 A IRIS DR AN R AT IR IBIE S5 1T
BR3L e

22. Interests in subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December

2015 are:
HAFN
HEAF
(RHREA)
HAH iEsTidnt:s
BRITRAR KRG #1E (FHRBA) BOE®
(Rer R Fii#MaE  Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
and fully paid up shares held by  the Company's
FELFE share capital the Company subsidiary
Principal activities (Class of Share) (or its nominee) (or its nominee)
TIARE BB A 1,000,000 7c (EER) 100% &R
ST R
Mortgage purchasesand ~ HK§1,000,000 (Ordinary) 100% N/A

servicing, and funding of
microfinance loans

T2-REARELED 1,008 (SER) TER TER
No business activity in 2015*  HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
FZE-REHLHLED 100X (EBR) TER &R
No business activity in 2015¢  US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
TEHRE 1AL (EBR) TER 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
TNEHRS 1T (EER) TER 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
& These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
these companies.

W These companies were set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-backed
securities issuance.
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23. FfHREIN - HERHMBHF = 23. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2015 2014
THET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Uz [B] & = Repossessed assets 65 1,151
UNGIE=S 158 Corporate club debentures 750 750
=) Others 86,424 18,323
87,239 20,224
24. BIEA#F* 24. Fixed assets
PAERE
ELYET
Office
BEMLESE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture H Motor BH
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
BT AL TET AT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-mE-HA—H Net book amount as at
iNEEET 1 January 2014 14917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
NE Additions 9,403 540 5922 - 15,865
IR (B 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (6,405) (851) (17.479) (106) (24,841)
F-Z-mWE+=A=+—H Netbookamountas at
iR 31 December 2014 17915 1,583 15,505 106 35,109
NE Additions 142 213 8,588 350 9,293
IR (FHE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (6,153) (624) (10,831) (164) (17.772)
F-E-RAF+-A=t—H Nethook amount as at
Bk 25 31 December 2015 11,904 1172 13,262 292 26,630
F-Z-H%+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2015
XAE Cost 27,803 7,628 166,746 1,000 203177
ESipiill Accumulated depreciation (15,899) (6,456) (153,484) (708) (176,547)
1K T 380 Net book amount 11,904 1,172 13,262 292 26,630
F-E-ME+-A=1—H Asat31December 2014
RA(E Cost 27,661 7,701 161,242 650 197,254
EShpils Accumulated depreciation (9,746) 6,118) (145,737) (544) (162,145)
iR Net book amount 17915 1,583 15,505 106 35,109
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25. MfTFI2

25. Interest payable

2015 2014

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

PATS & T e 2 5 78

Interest payable from

— BRITHRSIES — debt securities issued 159,643 128,317
— NZXEHEY — interest rate swap contracts 10,056 14,494
— Hfpffr — other liabilities 1,154 1,233

170,853 144,044

26. BIfFIRIN Rt FF 32 R H A T

fii

26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities

2015 2014

FHT FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

INER LRIV IVERP I3 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 46,838 112,439
H AR Other liabilities 4,717,601 4,658,279
E ik Other provision 30,984 28,860
4,795,423 4,799,578

H fth $1 G2 8 R /N B BV R B AR TR T KR
BE B AT IR B M IRIR 2R (BEABR R R &
HE 5= IT 32 ) 460,447,00058 7T (= F — PO 4 ¢
431,680,000/ 70) (Ki)£34) - 5REAT
TERE=—F+ - AR -FEENE-FARK
JiF 0 3R & 4% 18 BT 5145 51 %2 HE DN 58 18 5 A %8
& R 1 4,257,154,0008 L ( = F — U & ¢
4,226,599,0003 7T ) °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee received (net
of claims and related expenses) of HK$460,447,000 (2014
HK$431,680,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 34) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,257,154,000 (2014 HK$4,226,599,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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27. REET IR B IRFE T

2015
E2 il

Gross
TiER
HK$'000

BRE
Reinsurance
TiEx
HK$'000

A
Net
TiERx
HK$'000

27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

4 f i
Gross  Reinsurance Net
TEL TAL TEL
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

FEHRRRBREBEL S Provision for Uneamed premiums and

guarantee fees 943,685 125,243 818,442 1,066,272 140,468 925,804
RRERE& Provision for outstanding claims
— B/ (kE) 8z — claims reported/(recovery) 9,771 (1) 9,772 15,652 (4) 15,65
—EFABRRRER — claims incurred but not reported 25,389 341 21,978 30,165 3715 26,450
35,160 3410 31,750 45317 3/ 42,106
978,845 128,653 850,192 1,112,089 144179 967,910
(a) RHFHERBRERTAKEET (a)

;S HTIOT

Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
premiums and guarantee fees

2015
1) BRE e e

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

Ti#n THT T#Ex T T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-A-H Asat 1 January 1,066,272 140,468 925,804 1,253,398 175,764 1,078,134
BEWERR S (H£8) Premiums written (Note 8) 319,137 47,886 271,251 320,789 39,023 281,766
BiAmRE (F1+8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (441,724) (63111)  (378,613) (508,415) (74,319) (434,096)
Fr=H=r=F As at 31 December 943,685 125,243 818,442 1,066,272 140,468 925,804

(b) KRARBERFZSTIHSTWOT (b) Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims
2015
E ] BRRE A8 e

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

T#x THT T#x T TET THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-A-H Asat 1 January 45,817 3711 42,106 40,814 4978 35,836
EOEES Claims paid (3,051) = (3,051) (5,143) (420) (4,723)
ERERR Claims recovery 585 307 278 1,043 194 849

B (E3%),/ ez (fE8)  Claims (written back/incurred (Note 8)

— DHIRER — claims reported (3,415) (304) (3,111) 11,59 204 11,372
—BFEARBIRER — claims incurred but not reported (4,776) (304) (4,472) (2,493) (1,265) (1,228)
F+-A=t+-H As at 31 December 35,160 3,410 31,750 453817 3,71 42,106
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) fafEzEEM (c) Liability adequacy test

HITHERBMNIRN - ZEREFHEY The liability adequacy test considers current estimates
NeneRARWIEZASHEAIE of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows
MEMIARGHIT MRERTFZZF such as claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at
—AFEFTZA=T—HARZZ—EF 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group's
TZA=1+—H ' XEFNRK AR insurance liabilities are adequate.
TR °
28. EARITHRSFIES 28. Debt securities issued
2015 2014
FE T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R 55 AR A 5 ik 9 67 S5 E 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
B 5 MTN 5,681,736 5,108,688
PSR AR HITK AR S5 IE 5 5.2 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 5,681,736 5,108,688
FEE XTI B H LA FEX HE9 Debt securities designated as hedged
RS & items under fair value hedge
RS TAEITITHIGRS DIP notes 4,925,563 5,526,332
P HIG % MTN 22,512,514 22,298,908
5 7E oI B H A A FEXT sy Total debt securities designated as hedged
RS B AN items under fair value hedge 27,438,077 27,825,240
FANBFIARIEE I LA FET & Debt securities designated as at
T AR R SFIE S fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
RS TR RITITRIGRS DIP notes 139,083 133,852
TERFRITITN REAMG S RBIP and other notes 204,315 202,349
THIEHIART 5 7E N AN FEZ b Total debt securities designated as at
T AR B G5 IE S B8 fair value through profit or 10ss
upon initial recognition 343,398 336,201
B AITRS IS & A0 Total debt securities issued 33,463,211 33,270,129
ERREET(ZE—ME : L) FOL%E During the year, no debt securities (2014: nil) were designated on
IAET 5 T A EAE ARk 1 A SRS ) 5 S5 initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
o gEsmaEy N TETHRETFEE value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
PR o FARFINN - FEEAUA rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
EAE MY A RSB S B K E A B profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
NEFBIES LI E T 5 R G615 A5 designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
B A4 5 445,802,000 7 (= F recognition is HK$45,802,000 (2014: HK$52,999,000) lower than the
—PU4E : 52,999,000 7T) amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the note holders.
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ZEIRE AR AT IKE € Bt F% There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes
REARRZERNRZEF S| REMEAXN in the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities
BT e designated as at fair value.
BAITRFSIUESNZENARAT - The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
2014
T
HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 34,414,640 31,444,785
KAT Issuance 23,046,815 30,467,972
R TEE Less: Redemption (22,526,495) (27,524,884)
SNTIIL 5 ZE AR Exchange difference 2,808 26,767
B NMNE B Total nominal value 34,937,768 34,414,640
ARPERITLEER > Unamortised portion of discount (118,179) (122,688)
N EIFEE Fair value adjustment (1,356,378) (1,021,823)
FT+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 33,463,211 33,270,129
REERITHRS Notes issued during the year comprise:

B AT EE Amount issued at nominal value 23,046,815
B URERFRIN Consideration received 22,991,809
Fi B B Z1TH RS IEH Y B AR & F 1 #L All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
R MATEZERSIUS S ERE K Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general

ExReRIEBRERE - working capital and refinancing.
29. BgX 29. Share capital
2015 2014
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEITRHRE - Issued and fully paid:
2012 8% E Bk 2 billion ordinary shares 2,000,000 2,000,000
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30. Hihfig& 30. Other reserves

RE#E NTERE RS LS
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation k)

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TAL TAL TAL TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-Z-mE-A-H As at 1 January 2014 1,213,827 290,605 (5,083)¢ 13,104 1,512,448

AEHETANATESTS :  Changein fair value of available-for-sale

securities:

— A& A — net unrealised gains - 178,161 - - 178,161

— HENTI (f%12) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (63,023) - - (63,023)

— B — amortisation* - 13 - - 13

— B (A2 15(00)) — taxeffect (Note 15(b) - (19,595) - = (19,59)
Aemanh - Cash flow hedges:

— W AMBRAATFETS  —fairvalue changes transferred to

income statement - - 2852 - 2852

— B (A 15(0) — tax effect (Note 15(2)) = = (47) = (@
HERDENEFEAFNHIE  Release of translation reserve on

AR EERL AR disposal of a subsidiary classified as

(FHE13) assets held for sale (Note 13) - - - (13,104) (13.104)
EtheEkE/(517) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 95,556 2,381 (13,104) 84,833

MERE AN SR D AR RS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
BEH50% 3 75% EMFfEE  premium earned from retained profits

to contingency reserve 242 407 - - - 242,407
mREERREERE R Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (18,489) - - - (18,489)
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RE#E DTEREE NARE LRRE
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation k)

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THL TAL TAL TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-WE+-A=1—B/ Asat31December 2014/
“E-R5-A-8 1 January 2015 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707) - 1,821,199

AEHETFSMATESEZ :  Change infair value of available-for-sale

securities:
— REASHAN — net unrealised losses - (111,566) - - (111,566)
— HENTI (H£12) — reglisation on disposal (Note 12) - (129,989) - - (129,989)
— BB (H3E150) — tax effect (Note 15(0)) - 39921 - - 39921
b fid Cash flow hedges
—RANREROATET  —fairvalue changes transferred to
income Statement - - 3242 - 3242
— B (M 15(0) — tax effect (Note 15(0) - - (535) = (539)
Eth2mE(SHR),/ s Other comprehensive (lossyincome - (201,628) 2,707 - (198,921)

MREER %R AN RS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
BEE50% K 75% ENFEE  premium earned from retained profits

to contingency reserve 21,244 - - - 201,244
BXR A SRR ERERT Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (26,329) - - - (26,329)
F-Z-RE+-A=t—H Asat31December 2015 1,632,660 184,533 - - 1,817,193
* A E SRR ERA E D BHIEAR R 3 the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
TS - TUEER ML o securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
# RNEZE-—FFR =T —FRTHLEFOI # brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
SRA PR FTHERORITSR e B ZfE cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
HEBHITHOIE R © cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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31. 5EEXREATITINEKRRZS

(a)

ARRF BB R RRASINCES B
AFDFAAE - ARBSHEREAT
ST ZWR 5 e

SRAAANMEESREERR(F
BEER)NRXSEE TS :

() ARAEHAHEBEERME
ERFS TARREE RS
SHREEEREERER
Ko HHMIS0FBT(ZF
—POF 1208 4B B
ER ENAFEEERZRS
K2R

iy ARAFARFE=H12800
BT (ZZ M4 : 98078 T)
BiIAZ  (EANBEEE BB
FARTHZRRE

(i)  ARBTARFEHN60TET
“E-F 0BT TE
BERER  ERFEZEZMHR
£ MAFEHLHIFE
GFFEEB(ZF —MF : 80
T

vy FT-E—RF+-_A=+—
H - ARFFHERRTHBIN
LCESER(ZE—MF : 512
BIT) s &

V) ISCE2EIRBEERMA
2\ B FR ML 3001278 T B B R E
B F-_FT—anF+=A
—t+—BHERERBRHF (=
T K)o

31. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong
Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i)  the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.5
million (2014: HK$1.2 million) by way of fees to the
HKMA for such services during the year;

(i) the Company incurred secondment fee of HK$12.8
million (2014: HK$9.8 million) for secondees from the
HKMA during the year;

(i) the Company paid back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2014 HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year, and there was no payment (2014: HK$0.8 million)
for the relocation of back-up site to the HKMA during
the year;

(iv) the Company held no investment (2014: HK$500
million) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills as at 31
December 2015; and

(v)  the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2015 (2014 nil).
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SRR SEHE TS :

0]

(ii)

(iii)

5%

EN/NCI R GIEIR 7N Eakizh:]
DAE - FHIRZWIK AR K AR
BR TZE—EFEHM60
AARATHETEBRER - M8
EARNRENHRHT=F
—mFE—ARH ' ARF TR
FEBLTINHETESESE
IS

AR BT AF E [ R &K
A B W ER2092 8 t( = F
— PO 1.081Z 7 7T ) 1R 15 B

T
A

FZE—ARF+=_RA=+—
B ARRFHFEEFEESRK
RHRENER(ZE—F:
x)  REFEHTREF EWA
(Z=F—M4 : 1,020587T)
K

RNABISHIA K /N R R E
RITR - REAE AR
K R B A5 R B 5T AR
iIF 7 38 7 9 1,0004Z 78 7T 9 N\
AR IRER T HIER~ @ -
B FHE34 -

RAMEBEARBBRIBEEERA

AR ZBHE TSI

ARRRMB AR TEREZ
B ) SR B 4248 DR IR (R 18 IR
& K&

ERPDBIRFIT N EESE
S5EBRIBERAR L F RIE
AR AN ES 51t 4IH
|17 ST/NE Rt B S
TERID I © #RAT X - BER
BERARNE N AN AR
RTE At ERERS
EHEBORE ©

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (FSI) and paid rental of HK$0.6
million to the HKMA under the direction of the FSI in
2014. Following the expiry of the lease for the relevant
rented office premises in January 2014, no such rental
was paid to the HKMA by the Company during the
year,;

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$209
million (2014: HK$108 million) from the FSI during the
year,

the Company held no investment in the Hong Kong
Government Bonds as at 31 December 2015 (2014 nil)
and the interest income thereon during the year was
nil (2014: HK$10.2 million); and

the Company provided a loan guarantee product
with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan
guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable
by the Government with details set out in Note 34.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the
course of the Company's ordinary business; and

the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into
loan participation agreements under the Microfinance
Scheme pursuant to which HMML would fund all or
part of the microfinance loans as funding vehicle for
the Company.
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FTHoA=t—ANEREALH

The balances of the amounts due to the relevant related

IVEREE Y Ul NE parties as at 31 December are as follows:
B
The Government
2015 2014
F#&xT FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
H i £ £z (BfE 26) Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,717,601 4,658,279
(b) EEEEEAR (b) Key management personnel

TEERERANERIEERERN R
TR - FEE AR HIARRA LS HA
T BREERSREEAR -

RERTEEERARNEFHERE

e hEME R A @

Key management are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2015 2014
FAT
HK$'000

FHBxT
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 18,859 17,666
BEEEF Post-employment benefits 1,633 1,500
20,492 19,166
32. %38 32. Commitments
(a) #A=E (a) Capital

ERUEBRITE

Authorised but not contracted for

2015 2014
TAT

HK$'000

FERT
HK$'000

8,172 10,462
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(b) EEFHY (b) Operating lease
TFEREBR - BEFAEHOLEMR Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
NME L B R R KA S R operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
DT - analysed as follows:
2015 2014
FH&xT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
AEY) Office premises
— T ET—%F — not later than one year 32,458 30,911
— 2T —FEF EZTAHF — later than one year and not
later than five years 29,753 62,212
62,211 93,123
33. RIBIRFENW S 33. Mortgage insurance business
FZFE-—RAF+=ZA=1+—8  ~&£HAM As at 31 December 2015, the total risk-in-force of the Group is
NS IEAR BANL N 13442 e (= F —PU4F - approximately HK$13.4 billion (2014: HK$13.1 billion) of which
131123 7T) » B 2128 (=T —m4E : HK$2.1 billion (2014: HK$2.1 billion) is ceded to the approved
2123 7T ) B Mz fE B R A 7EE B4R reinsurers and the balance of HK$11.3 billion (2014: HK$11 billion)
fo - MANSE N B 17 &8 1%~ 1131278 7T is retained by the Group.
(ZZ—PU4F : 1042 7T) NS ©
F1M3ZET(ZF—MHEF : 110128 7T) i Out of the HK$11.3 billion (2014: HK$11 billion) of risk-in-force
AREFFBEHNEIZETYS  3{Z2EB T retained by the Group, the excess loss of HK$0.3 billion (2014:
(—ZF—PO4E : 728 70) KPS IR0 R A0 HK$0.7 billion) of risk-in-force is hedged through the use of excess-
ML &z ARk BRENTHE of-loss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer
F 8] 2 B9 XS FEX R - T AN &5 ] BT iR B8 2B risk positions, and the Group retains a portion of the total risk
SRR - BIEE RS A XA ] 8L 1% comprising the first-loss and remote risk portions.

RARHI KBS o
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34. FI/NERITFIE R TR TR 455

REER

AR FARAA MRS RBARRIL - 12
BB IR IR B T e BT % (80 2
DYFRARIE AR AN 91,0002 78 7T H9 B HE £R
IRBE ) FOAIRIR = @ » B LT SIS 3198
R @FRBGIERSE  BEESRAT
SHBX MR K RIAX TS - mA 1
U 1 BT B o MATRER A R 2T
RURMAX R RIEA - KRS &K
PR o KA E R I @ IS R
HEEFE -

BRENMFRINRHRER> R NAKH
MiFeaERMAREREAHLA - &
NREHEMEZBRTIORATM -
ETARBRRRRBNEZZ MmN
SHINAB R mA XA S E T
BT = Bt - %7 an B X e AR R A 5
TAKENR = RERINNE  ARFEM K
AR KHEN R AT R XS] - REHE
Al RAER o

34. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment
of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee
fees collected under this special loan guarantee product are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Company is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect
of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group’s
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.
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35. AATMMBRAREEZDT 35. Statement of financial position and reserve
=) movement of the Company

BNEFATNF-_FE—AE+=-H 35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=t+—HEMEZKRAR 31 December 2015
2014
T
HK$'000
B ASSETS
NeREHREE Cash and short-term funds 20,998,850 18,420,026
R CF) B K5k Interest and remittance
receivables 319,481 341,436
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 473,403 556,962
RFRBE 2 Loan portfolio, net 7,635,764 11,033,066
IEHIRR Investment securities:
— A E — available-for-sale 6,638,367 5,734,162
— EEE R H — held-to-maturity 10,274,001 9,168,795
N IEPNGIES &5 Interests in subsidiaries 3,690,964 4,377,944
I~ e MEMART  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 86,197 19,168
ERTT Fixed assets 26,630 35,109
BRE R = Reinsurance assets 128,740 144,399
7= RBE Total assets 50,272,397 49,831,067
R LIABILITIES
RIASTFI) 2 Interest payable 170,853 144,044
MATIRIR « RIS FF S K Accounts payable, accrued
H A 1 f5 expenses and other liabilities 4,795,133 4,799,400
PTESRMTEAE Derivative financial instruments 1,821,927 1,575,968
= HARR I 9 57 Current income tax liabilities 129,153 133,099
126 JE £ 10 67 fR Deferred income tax liabilities 36,992 76,098
1RB& TR Insurance liabilities 979,549 1,113,683
2 AITRSIES Debt securities issued 33,463,211 33,270,129
AR B Total liabilities 41,396,818 41,112,421
& EQUITY
WA AN G KR AEE ©  Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holders:
N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE A Retained profits 35.2 5,058,386 4,897,447
XS i % Contingency reserve 35.2 1,632,660 1,437,745
NEEES Fair value reserve 35.2 184,533 386,161
papahii s Hedging reserve 35.2 - (2,707)
N B Total equity 8,875,579 8,718,646
AR RN S Total liabilities and equity 50,272,397 49,831,067
FERDT-T - FEWA=-+HHB Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April
R RN FIAT 2016.
BGER Norman T. L. Chan ! Raymond L. C. Li

ST E#MTEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director — #7TZE# 57  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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35.2 A ATMEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company

REEN REfEZ  AVPERS HWH#EE

Retained  Contingency Fair value Hedging BE
profits reserve reserve reserve Total
TEx TiEx THx T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z-mE-A-H Asat 1 January 2014 5,898,977 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088)" 7,398,321
FEERT Profit for the year 722,388 - - - 722,388
HEb2EYE Other comprehensive income:
AHHETF AN ATES  Change infair value of available-for-
Sale securities
— REP Mz &5 — net unrealised gains - - 178,161 - 178161
— HENTY — realisation on disposal - - (63,023) - (63,023)
— R — amortisation* - - 13 - 13
—Hm — tax effect - - (19,595) - (19,595)
e ixm Cash flow hedges
— W ARERSNATETS  —fairvalue changes transferred to
income statement - - - 2852 2852
—Hm — tax effect - - - () (471)
FEELARGEH Total comprehensive income for
the year 722,388 - 95,556 2,381 820,325
MREEFEREHENR  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFHAIS0%HT5% E premium eamed from retained
R EE profits to contingency reserve (242,407) 202,407 - - =
HRRIEZREZREER  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 18,489 (18,489) - - -
Bf=E-—=FRE Dividends paid related to 2013 (1,500,000) - - - (1,500,000)
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REERN
Retained

profits
THL
HK$'000

RE#E
Contingency
reserve
TATL
HK$'000

ALEREE
Fair value
reserve
T
HK$'000

&
Hedging
reserve
TAL
HK$'000

BE
Total
T
HK$'000

F-E-WE+-R=1-H/ Asat31December 2014/

“Z-hf-A-H 1 January 2015 4,897,447 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707) 6,718,646
REERT Profit for the year 705,854 - - - 705,854
Hip 2 Fles Other comprehensive income:

AEHETANATETS  Changein fair value of available-for-
Sale securities

— REANSHAT — net unrealised losses - - (111,566) - (111,566)

—HERTY — realisation on disposal - - (129,989) - (129,989)

—Hm — tax effect - - 39927 - 39927
P& w Cash flow hedges

—RAIEROATESS  —fairvalue changes transferred to

income statement - - - 3242 3242

— B — tax effect = = = (535) (639)

AEELANEEH Total comprehensive income for
the year 705,854 - (201,628) 2,707 506,933
HRBRFIEKTFANR  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk

REBHM 0% 5% 2 premium eamed from retained

R fEE profits to contingency reserve (221,244) 221,284 - - =
BRI ZKEZEREEF  Release of contingency reserve to

retained profits 26,329 (26,329) - - -
BERZE-EERS Dividends paid related to 2014 (350,000) - - - (350,000)
F-E-AF+-A=1+-H Asat31December2015 5,058,386 1,632,660 184,533 - 6,875,579

* B Al B e ik 2 A B E HIE & the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
HFRAREIN SR - FlamRME - securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

t KSR RER-_T——ERFE4 ’
B SRR RN 25
e BltzfE  HRAHTHOINE
X o

brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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3. EEFTRXS KHFn&4hay  36. Directors’ material interests in transactions,

BEXWE arrangements and contracts
HE-_T—RAF+_A=1+—HAFEH At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015, there
8] - REBPAK R FEESERA T subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
SHEAERITLENEZNRS - RHNE of significance in relation to the Company'’s business, to which
9 AREMALTARARESREXE any member of the Group was a party, and in which any person
nal (BERA BRI E L) TAFEF who was a director of the Company at any time in the year or a
HE - HFEBETRS  RHMEAN LR connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
B EEREEANE such person, directly or indirectly, had a material interest.

37. BEiEMFIRER 37. Approval of financial statements
EERT - "FHNAZTHHEBIR The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
W55k © on 25 April 2016.
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